
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84203959772 

1-877-853-5247

AGENDA: 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3-minute limit)

5. APPROVAL OF BOARD MEETING MINUTES

a. March

b. April

6. FINANCIAL REPORTS

a. April 2021

7. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS

8. OLD BUSINESS

a. Board Meeting Times

9. NEW BUSINESS

a. Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Cannon Beach

b. Translation Services

c. Route Schedule Changes

10. CORRESPONDENCE

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT

12. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS

13. ADJOURNMENT

Sunset Empire Transportation District 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  
BOARD ZOOM MEETING AGENDA 

THURSDAY MAY 27, 2021 

9:00 AM 

  1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84203959772


SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

MAY 
 2021 

Page 1 of 3 

AASHTO AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF STATE HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION OFFICIALS 

ACT ACTUAL 

ACCTS ACCOUNTS 

ADA AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

ADS ADVERTISEMENTS 

AP ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

APTA AMERICAN PUBLIC TRANSPORATION ASSOCIATION 

AR ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

ASC ASTORIA SENIOR CENTER 

BG BACKGROUND 

BLDGING BUILDING 

BOC BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

BS BALANCE SHEET 

BUS REG FEE BUS REGISTRATION FEE 

CARES ACT CORONAVIRUS, AID, RELIEF, AND ECONOMIC SECURITY ACT 

CCC CLATSOP COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

CCCHD CLATSOP CARE CENTER HEALTH DISTRICT 

CCO COORDINATED CARE ORGANIZATION 

CK CHECK 

COMP COMPUTER 

CONF CONFERENCE 

CPCCO COLUMBIA PACIFIC COORDINATED CARE ORGANIZATION 

CRRSAA  CORONAVIRUS RESPONSE AND RELIEF SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS ACT 

CRS CLATSOP REHABILITATION SERVICES 

CSR CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE 

CTAA COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA 

CTE CENTER FOR TRANSPORTATION AND THE ENVIRONMENT 

DAV DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS 

DHS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

DIST DISTRICT 

DLSM DRIVE LESS SAVE MORE 

DMAP DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

DOJ DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

DOT DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

EQUIP EQUIPMENT 

FHWA FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION 

FTA FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

GF GENERAL FUND 

HR HUMAN RESOURCES 

IGA INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

INFO INFORMATION 

INT INTEREST 

IS INCOME STATEMENT 

  2



SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

MAY 
 2021 

Page 2 of 3 
 

INS  INTEGRATED NETWORK SYSTEM 

IT  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

KTH  KEY TRANSIT HUBS 

LCC  LOWER COLUMBIA CONNECTOR 

LGIP  LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 

LGPI  LOCAL GOVERNMENT PERSONNEL INSTITUTE 

LRCTP  LONG RANGE COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

MAINT  MAINTENANCE 

MBRC  MILES BETWEEN ROAD CALLS 

MISC  MISCELLANEOUS 

MM  MOBILITY MANAGEMENT 

MOS  MONTH 

MOU  MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

NADTC  NATIONAL AGING AND DISABILITY TRANSPORTATION CENTER 

NEMT  NON-EMERGENT MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION 

NHMP  NATURAL HAZARDS MITIGATION PLAN 

NRTAP  NATIONAL RURAL TRANSIT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

NTI  NATIONAL TRANSIT INSTITUTE 

NWACT  NORTHWEST AREA COMMISSION ON TRANSPORTATION 

NWOTA  NORTHWEST OREGON TRANSIT ALLIANCE 

OAR  OREGON ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

ODOT  OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

OHA  OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY 

OHP  OREGON HEALTH PLAN 

OrCPP  OREGON COOPERATIVE PROCUREMENT PROGRAM 

ORS  OREGON REVISED STATUTES 

OPTC  OREGON PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION CONFERENCE 

OPTIS  OREGON PUBLIC TRANSIT INFORMATION SYSTEM 

OPTP  OREGON PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

OR  OREGON 

OTA  OREGON TRANSIT ASSOCIATION 

OTC  OREGON TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

P&L  PROFIT AND LOSS 

PARA  PARA-TRANSIT 

PCA  PERSONAL CARE ATTENDANT 

PM  PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 

PTAC  PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

PTD  PUBLIC TRANSIT DIVISION 

PTSP  PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION SERVICE PROVIDER 

QE  QUALIFIED ENTITY 

QTR  QUARTER 

RAC  RULES ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

RC  RIDECARE 

  3



SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
COMMONLY USED ACRONYM LIST 

MAY 
 2021 

Page 3 of 3 

REHAB REHABILITATION 

RFP REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

RFQ REQUEST FOR QUOTES 

RIBTC RURAL AND INTERCITY BUS TRANSPORTATION CONFERENCE 

SDAO SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION OF OREGON 

SDIS SPECIAL DISTRICTS INSURANCE SERVICES 

SETD SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

SETD GF SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT GENERAL FUND 

SETD GEN SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT GENERAL FUND 

SIP SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

SSP/0401 ACCOUNT FROM OREGON DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

STF SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION FUND 

STIF STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND 

STIP STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

STN STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION NETWORK 

STP SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM 

SWIP SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

TAC TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

TAC TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (STF/5310/STIF) 

TCTD TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

TECH TECHNOLOGY 

TGM TRANSPORTATION AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT 

TO TRANSPORTATION OPTIONS 

TPJCC TONGUE POINT JOB CORPS CENTER 

TRB TRANSPORTATION RESEARCH BOARD 

TSP TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS PLAN 

VETP VETERANS ENHANCED TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM 

YTD YEAR TO DATE 

ZEB ZERO EMISSION BUS 

ZEP ZERO EMISSION PROPULSION 

ZEBRA ZERO EMISSION BUS RESOURCE ALLIANCE 

  4



1 

 (2)(d) To conduct 

1. CALL TO ORDER - Chair Tamra Taylor called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM.

2. ROLL CALL:

Present: Chair Tamra Taylor, Vice Chair Tracy MacDonald, Secretary/Treasurer, Pamela Alegria, Commissioner

Charles Withers, Commissioner Diana Nino, Commissioner Debbie Boothe-Schmidt and Commissioner Rebecca

Read

Staff: Executive Director Jeff Hazen, Chief Operating Officer Paul Lewicki, Financial Officer Kelly Smith,

Executive Assistant Mary Parker, Paratransit Supervisor Jennifer Giesler, Transportation Options Specialist Kathy

Kleczek, Human Resources Manager Sue Farmer, Mobility Manager Jason Jones

3. CHANGES TO AGENDA- None

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes)- None

5. APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 25, 2021 BOARD MEETING MINUTES-

Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve the February 2021 Board Minutes

Commissioner Read seconded the motion.

Discussion-None

Roll Call Vote:

7-Aye 0-Nay

Motion passed.

6. FINANCIAL REPORTS-

February 2021 Financial Report- Executive Director Hazen explained that the Credit Card statements arrived

much later than usual so he had emailed the Board copies of the Credit Card Statement with the updated

Exception Report and Statement of Activity yesterday. Hazen replaced the original Exceptions Report with the

updated Exceptions Report to view and Kelly asked if there were any questions. No further changes or corrections

were made.

Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt moved to accept the February financial reports with the stated correction to be

made to the balance sheet.

Commissioner MacDonald seconded the motion.

Discussion- None

7-Aye- 0-Nay-

Motion passed.

7. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino 

Aye x x x x x x x 7 

Nay 0 

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino 

Aye x x x x x x x 7 

Nay 0 

Sunset Empire Transportation District 

Board of Commissioners  

 March 25, 2021 

Draft Board Zoom Meeting Minutes 

  5



 

2 

 

a. Chair Taylor- Nothing to report 

b. Commissioner MacDonald- Reported that he had sent his Executive Director Evaluation. The City of 

Seaside is going to be installing another electric charging station at the Convention Center.  

c. Commissioner Alegria-Nothing to report.  

d. Commissioner Withers- Reported that he had sent in his elections paperwork and he was proud to say he 

had received his first Covid vaccine. Withers also reported that while he was riding the 101 towards 

Seaside last Thursday it was raining very hard and there was a lady standing alongside the road and the 

bus driver pulled over to pick her up even though she had not flagged down the bus. Commissioner 

Withers said he did not know the driver’s name, but it was really a nice gesture.  

e. Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt- Reported that she has been volunteering at the Covid Vaccine call center 

and have been encouraging people to use the bus to the clinics.  

f. Commissioner Nino- Reported that she had completed her Executive Director Evaluation and submitted 

her SETD Commissioner Re-Election application to Clatsop County Elections and attended the 

Transportation Advisory Committee Meeting which had to do with adjustments to the 5310-project list.  

g. Commissioner Read- Reported that she has submitted her Executive Director Review and her candidate 

information for the May elections.    

 

8. OLD BUSINESS- None 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 

a. Fare Collection as a Service Agreement- 

Executive Director Hazen reported that he has been working an E-fare system for several years. 

Hazen said an E-fare system will allow SETD to track important statistical information about our 

riders and will also make riding the bus easier for our riders. SETD put out an RFP, reached out to 

four companies and received two proposals. One from Cubic and the other from Token Transit. 

Hazen said Cubic had bought Delerrok who is the provider for Rogue Valley Transportation District, 

Lane Transit District and Cascades East Transit. Token Transit is the provider for Columbia Area 

Transit and seven transit agencies that are part of the Cascades West Council of Governments.  

Hazen said he, Paul, and Jason evaluated the proposals and then met with each of them.  

The evaluation criteria consisted of 

• Adequacy, completeness, thoroughness, and effectiveness in addressing all the required      

functions, capabilities, and services  

• Demonstrated operation of the service in at least one other agency  

• Operational references  

• Price, payment, and terms  

Executive Director Hazen explained that after evaluating both systems, the committee selected Token 

Transit. The decision was made for several reasons: Token Transit does not charge a startup fee, it is 

being used by 2 NWOTA partners, it can be used with the Transit App. that we have available for our 

riders, they support the NW Connector Pass.  

Executive Director Hazen said the Terms of Service have been reviewed and approved by legal 

counsel and staff is recommending that a motion be made to approve the terms of service and 

authorize the Board Chair to sign.  

There was discussion about the plans for the Token Transit system roll out, outreach, marketing and 

education. Hazen said he plans to have staff available at bus stops to explain the program to riders.  

Commissioner Withers volunteered to assist with the outreach and thanked Jeff and staff for 

always moving forward on technology and keeping our transit agency in the forefront of 

technology.  

Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve the terms of service and authorize the Board 

Chair to sign 

Commissioner Nino seconded the motion 

 

  6



3 

7 Aye 0 Nay 

Motion passed   

b. ODOT Agreement 34737-

Executive Director Hazen explained that this Agreement is for a Needs Based CARES Act grant that

we have been awarded. This grant application was for the purchase of two Driver Supervisor vehicles

to be utilized while supervising drivers on routes or for response to issues. Included in the grant

application was additional funding for the continued purchasing of disinfecting supplies.

We were awarded funding for one Driver Supervisor vehicle in the amount of $25,000 and $20,000

for the purchase of disinfecting supplies. We are members of the Oregon Cooperative Procurement

Program (OrCPP) where we have access to purchase from existing State price agreements. We will

be utilizing this program for the purchase of the vehicle.
Commissioner Nino moved to approve the ODOT Agreement #34737 in the amount of $45.000 

and authorize the Board Chair to sign it.  

Commissioner Booth-. Schmidt seconded  

Discussion-None 

7 Aye 0 Nay 

Motion passed 

c. Request for Use of Transit Center Parking Lot-

Sondra Carr reviewed the request that she has submitted for the use of a portion of the

Astoria Transit Center parking lot for an Astoria Night Market. Sondra explained that Night

Markets are a cross between a general market like the Astoria Sunday Market and art fairs.

They are more artistic and creative but also have vendor and local business booths. Sondra

said that the section of town that the Transit Center is in is becoming a more quirky and

creative part of town. She said she has talked with several business owners in the area about

how to pull more people who are interested in this sort of thing down to our part of town.

Sondra said there is a list of the businesses she has talked to included in the proposal and

they were unanimously in support of the Night Market. Sondra said she will continue to talk

with people, but this is a slow process, and she does not want the Board to think that we are

just jumping into this. The earliest date they could see doing this is October 9th and this may

not be possible with Covid. Sondra contacted the Portland Night Market (PNM)

management team and spoke with Emma Meeker. They discussed working collaboratively,

but Sondra said that the PNM has committed to mentoring us regardless of their desired

involvement and have advised us to start small and limit this to twice a year during

good-weather months. Emma Meeker is talking with the city and county to see what their

liability would be and collect this information for us. Sondra said they are asking for

information on the potential use of the space located on the east side of the Transit

Center parking lot which would not include the bus drive-through area or the area next to

the building. Barriers would be set up to lessen impact on riders.

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino 

Aye x x x x x x x 7 

Nay 0 

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino 

Aye x x x x x x x 7 

Nay 0 

  7



4 

Sondra added that this is still in the information-gathering and initial planning phases so 

what we are offering here is the preliminary idea and will be open for discussion with 

everyone as we move forward. There were Board comments, suggestions, and discussion 

on the details of the plan. Executive Director Hazen suggested that based on the 

discussion he suggested that the Board make a motion to give a preliminary ok and give 

him permission to negotiate a contract with the organization and bring this back to the 

Board at the May 27th meeting.  

Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt moved to give Executive Director Hazen the 

opportunity for more conversation with Sondra and bring it back at the April 

Board meeting.  

Commissioner MacDonald seconded the motion 

7 Aye 0 Nay 

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino 

Aye x x x x x x x 7

Nay 0

10. CORRESPONDENCE- None

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT- Executive Director Hazen reviewed several items and reported that the

Transportation Advisory Committee met yesterday March 24th to approve a correction to the 5310 Grant due to

the match money not being added in. The total was $278,000 should have been $307,000.

12. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS- Open discussion with Board.

13. OTHER ITEMS- None

Meeting was adjourned 11:10 AM Mary Parker, Recording Secretary 

Secretary/Treasurer_________________________________        Date______________________________ 

         Pamela Alegria 

  8



 

1 
 

 
 

 
 (2)(d) To conduct  

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER - Chair Tamra Taylor called the meeting to order at 9:07 AM.   
 

2. ROLL CALL: 
Present: Chair Tamra Taylor, Vice Chair Tracy MacDonald, Secretary/Treasurer, Pamela Alegria, Commissioner 
Charles Withers, Commissioner Diana Nino, Commissioner Debbie Boothe-Schmidt and Commissioner Rebecca 
Read  
 
Staff: Executive Director Jeff Hazen, Chief Operating Officer Paul Lewicki, Financial Officer Kelly Smith, 
Executive Assistant Mary Parker, Transportation Options Specialist Kathy Kleczek, Human Resources Manager 
Sue Farmer, Mobility Manager Jason Jones  

 
3. CHANGES TO AGENDA-Executive Director Hazen requested that item 9b be removed from agenda.  

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes)- None 

 
5. APPROVAL OF THE March 2020 BOARD MEETING MINUTES-  

Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve the March 25, 2021 Board Minutes 
Commissioner Charles Withers seconded the motion 
Discussion-None 
Roll Call Vote:  

 
 
 
 

7 Aye 0 Nay  
Motion passed  

 
6. FINANCIAL REPORTS-  

March 2021 Financial Report-  
Kelly Smith asked if there were any questions concerning the March Financial Report. Commissioner Alegria 
asked what longevity credit is. Executive Director Hazen explained that since we have been with SDIS insurance 
for a long time we receive a credit when we renew our premiums. Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt asked if we are 
still underbudget in the general fund and do we have any idea when those funds will be in. Hazen said these funds 
are for buses and the dates for receiving them keeps getting pushed back. We probably will not see them until 
after the beginning of the fiscal year. Commissioner Booth-Schmidt also asked about the Amtrak account. Kelly 
said the current amount is the January payment they still owe for February and March. Commissioner Nino asked 
about the status of payments from Cannon Beach. Kelley said Cannon Beach did not get invoiced from July 
through September. Hazen said we received a large payment from them, but the check was returned because we 
had invoiced them wrong. Hazen said we submitted a corrected invoice and are in the process of being paid but 
will check on the current balance and let the Board know.    

Commissioner Withers moved to approve the March 2021 Financial Reports  
Commissioner Alegria seconded the motion.  
Discussion- None 

 
 
 

 

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino  
Aye x x x x x x x 7 
Nay        0 

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino  
Aye x x x x x x x 7 
Nay        0 

 
Sunset Empire Transportation District 

Board of Commissioners  
April 22, 2021  

Draft Board Zoom Meeting Minutes 
 
 

  9



2 

7-Aye- 0-Nay-
Motion passed.

7. REPORTS FROM CHAIR AND COMMISSIONERS
a. Chair Taylor- Reported that she had attended the Safe Routes to School meeting with Kathy Kleczek.

There is no way to make an accurate determination of how many cars there will be going up to the
Seaside school during the current Hybrid schedules. The school has determined that parents will drop off
students in the morning and buses will take students home after school and the backup sometimes goes up
to the hospital.

b. Commissioner MacDonald-Reported that he had a personal occurrence on Wahanna road this morning.
c. Commissioner Alegria-Nothing to report.
d. Commissioner Withers-Reminded everyone to vote and to remind their families to vote for the SETD

Commissioners on the ballot. Commissioner Withers also commented that it has been very busy in
Seaside and Cannon Beach with heavy traffic and people walking in the streets, but our bus drivers do a
wonderful job and are so patient and kind to everyone.

e. Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt-Reported that she is still volunteering at the Covid Vaccine call center
and let’s people know about our vaccine shuttle services.

f. Commissioner Nino-Reported that she has been an interpreter at the Fair Grounds last week during a
Covid Vaccine clinic and was so proud to see our buses delivering people. I also tossed around some
ideas with Kathy Kleczek and Jason Jones about making some educational videos.

g. Commissioner Read-Reported that she had attended the Sunset Parks and Recreation meeting to gather
citizen input about childcare and youth programs. They are gathering information in anticipation of hiring
a consultant. Commissioner Read said that she is trying to get the minutes from the meeting because one
of the things she understands is that parents have barriers in getting their kids to the programs offered by
the Parks District, so she will bring that to the commission meeting. Commissioner Read said she knows
Jeff and folks are already in collaboration with Skyler Archibald, but she really thinks this needs some
attention. Commissioner Read said she would like to have that same person describe the barriers
discussed. Chair Taylor said she understood that Rebecca wanted this to be an SETD Board agenda item
and recommended that this be put on the agenda after the upcoming elections because that whole board
could change.

8. CONTINUED BUSINESS- 
a. Request for use of the Transit Center Parking Lot- Executive Director Hazen said that there was great 

discussion from the Board during the presentation about the Night Market proposal at the March Board 
meeting. One of the issues brought up was the Electric Charging Station not being accessible for use 
during the Market. Executive Director Hazen contacted the owner of the charging station who said they 
would not mind suspending service at the charging station for one day for the Market. Once they are 
notified of the Night Market date the owners will send out an electronic message to let users know of the 
closure. We will also post signs.  
Hazen said he had not heard back from Sondra about the start time for set up, but he moved the time up to 
8:00 AM so it falls within daylight hours. We plan to block off the parking lot the night before so there 
are no vehicles left parked in the lot the day of the market. Hazen said the fee is nominal since the District 
doesn’t have any expense attributed to the market.  

Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve the parking lot use permit as amended and to 
allow Executive Director Hazen to continue discussion.  
Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt seconded the motion 
Discussion: None  

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino 
Aye x x x x x x x 7 
Nay 0 

  10



3 

7-Aye 0-Nay
Motion passed.

b. Board Meeting Times Discussion- Executive Director Hazen explained that Commissioner Read
requested that the Board discuss when the monthly Board meetings are held. Hazen said he looked back at
the District Records and found the meeting has been set for the fourth Thursday at 9 am since 2010.
Commissioner Read said the reason why she had brought this up is that she had heard from people that
daytime meetings are hard for people to attend that work daytime jobs and it kind of cancels out some
folks from being involved or who desire to be a commissioner. Read said she was not necessarily
promoting that we have to change the date but was wondering if we could have a little brainstorm as to
how we can improve on this and younger people fall into this category more often than older people and
retired people. Commission Alegria said she agrees with Rebecca that the meeting should be held at night
for more participation. Chair Taylor asked Commissioner Alegria what time she was comfortable with.
Commissioner Alegria said after dinner. Commissioner Withers said he agreed with getting input from a
younger demographic in a Board meeting however a 3-hour meeting starting at 7 pm for those of us that
have to drive the farthest is a disadvantage so if we do this it would have to be at 5:30 or over at 8:00 pm
at the latest. Commissioner MacDonald said he is kind of retired but still working and has to adjust time
off 3 weeks in advance. Commissioner MacDonald added in the he past we have tried having an evening
meeting in Seaside but those that come from the North are on the road until 10:30 pm. Commissioner
Nino said she really like the motivation behind Rebecca’s proposal, and I do think that we should have
more younger people in leadership which is a positive thing. Commissioner Nino said she agreed that we
should not be making it too late but for the commissioner’s however this is a monthly meeting and I think
we can set the time aside and plan it ahead and 5:30 is not super late. Commissioner Nino also said one of
the good things that has come up in Covid times is our video system has been refined and if we do it at
5:30 we might be getting participation from the public even if you work full time. Commissioner Boothe-
Schmidt said she agreed whole heartedly. When we only have daytime meetings it doesn’t give
everybody that could run for these positions a chance to run, and we miss out on a lot of talent.
Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt also said that after Covid we should have meetings in South County
because she has heard they feel left out and added that nighttime meetings are tuff but there is a lot of
talent out there that we are leaving behind. Chair Taylor said having later meetings would work better for
her.  Chair Taylor asked Executive Director Hazen how to get public input. Executive Director Hazen
said we can do an outreach campaign to acquire public input. Director Hazen said he has been an elected
official before and there is not perfect time for a Board meeting. We are also not a 9 to 5 economy in
Clatsop County as the economy has shifted quite a bit to the service industry, but it would be nice to get
more younger people involved. Hazen said as far as staff goes, we will do whatever the Board wants.
Commissioner Read said she would like to be involved with that message because this is a marketing
opportunity, and we can talk about all of the things we are working on. I think it would really fall flat if it
was not a dynamic message. Executive Director Hazen said that Mary has been doing this job for many
years and can write a good message for this.

c. Board Retreat-Executive Director Hazen said in the past we have had a Board Retreat when we have set
Strategic Priorities but have not done anything outside of that. Commissioner Nino said we were going to
go to Portland on the Columbia Connector before Covid, but maybe we could do an activity where we
could socialize a little bit. Executive Director Hazen said staff would be keyed up to make sure
conversations did not violate Public Meeting Laws, so socializing brings up red flags for me.
Commissioner Withers said we need to figure out how we are going to move forward and will we be
having meetings that are part in person and part zoom. Executive Director Hazen said that sounds more
like a work session and that sounds like a good idea. Executive Director Hazen asked to have this
discussion after the Budget meetings. Chair Taylor asked to have this put on the June Board meeting
agenda.

9. NEW BUSINESS

  11



 

4 
 

a. Amendment Statewide ODOT Agreement 32499 Transportation Options -Executive Director Hazen that 
this amendment is to extend the existing agreement by one year and adds $97,775.21 to the Grant to fund 
the Transportation Options program through fiscal year 2022.  

Commissioner MacDonald moved that the Board approves the amendment to ODOT Agreement 
32499 and authorize the Board Chair to sign it.  
Commissioner Nino seconded the motion 
Discussion-Commissioner Alegria asked why the agreement does not specify Driver awareness to 
pedestrians and bicyclists. Executive Director Hazen said both are incorporated in the program. 
Kathy Kleczek also explained both are incorporated in her notes and scope of work.    

  

 
7-Aye 0-Nay 
Motion passed.  

 
b. Covid-19 Vaccination Transportation Update- Jennifer Geisler reported that there has been a nation-wide 

effort to assist those without transportation to get their Covid vaccine. SETD opened free transportation 
for elderly and disabled to be brought to and from their scheduled vaccine appointments. This service is 
by appointment, so riders have to call in and schedule their ride. About 70% of those using the service 
have not used this type of service before. Jennifer said in April SETD started the Covid Vaccine clinic 
shuttle service that provides bus service during the Covid Clinics. The routes run between the Astoria 
Transit Center to the Clatsop County Fairgrounds and from the bus stop at the Seaside Cinema to the old 
Seaside High School. 

c. Approval of letter of support for Warrenton Arbor Corridor Pedestrian Walkway signed by Chair Taylor.  
Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve the letter of support 
Commissioner Alegria seconded the motion 

 

 
7-Aye 0-Nay 

              Motion passed 
 

 
10. CORRESPONDENCE- Letter from Jason Jones: Executive Director Hazen read a letter Jason Jones had wrote 

describing a special Travel Training he had done.  
 

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT- Executive Director Hazen reviewed his report.   
 

12. LEADERSHIP TEAM REPORTS-Open Board discussion with Team.   
 

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION-Chair Taylor closed the Board Meeting and opened Executive Session- for 
ORS192.660(2)(i) 11:00 AM    
 

14. Chair Taylor re opened regular Board Meeting at 11:15 AM- 
 

Commissioner MacDonald moved to approve Executive Director’s 2021 Evaluation 
Commissioner Booth-Schmidt seconded the motion 

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino  
Aye x x x x x x x 7 
Nay        0 

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino  
Aye x x x x x x x 7 
Nay        0 

  12



 

5 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Aye-7 Nay-0 
Motion passed 
 
Commissioner Withers moved to increase Executive Director Jeff Hazen salary by 4% starting July 1, 2021 
Commissioner MacDonald seconded the motion 
Discussion- Commissioner Boothe asked how the 4% raise was determined. Chair Taylor said the committee 
looked at other Transit Executive Directors in the region and determined that Jeff should be brought up to the 
same level.  

 
 
 
 

Aye-7 Nay-0 
Motion passed 
 

15. OTHER ITEMS- None 
 

Meeting was adjourned 11:20 AM   Mary Parker, Recording Secretary 
           
 
Secretary/Treasurer_________________________________        Date______________________________ 
  
  

 

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino  
Aye x x x x x x x 7 
Nay        0 

Name Taylor MacDonald Alegria Read Withers Boothe-Schmidt Nino  
Aye x x x x x x x 7 
Nay        0 

  13



  14



  15



  16



  17



  18



  19



  20



  21



  22



  23



  24



Date: May 20, 2021 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda item 8.a Board Meeting Times Discussion (continued) 

At the April 22 Board meeting, discussion was held in regard to the day and time that the Board 

holds its monthly meeting.  Commissioner Read spoke about it being a challenge for people 

who work a standard job to participate in the meetings or consider running for a position on 

the Board.  It is difficult for younger people to be able to be involved in morning meetings.  She 

felt that evenings after 5:00 would be better.  Commissioner Alegria agreed that meetings 

should be at night for better participation.  She recommended a time after dinner.  

Commissioner Withers agreed that encouraging younger people involvement was desirable.  He 

mentioned that early evening, no later than 6:00 would be best because of the concern of 

driving late at night when we get back to in person meetings.  Commissioner MacDonald spoke 

about the Board having met in Seaside once a year in the Evening in the two years prior to the 

pandemic.  Commissioner Nino likes the motivation of getting younger people involved and felt 

5:30 is a reasonable time.  She also mentioned the fact that we are broadcasting live on 

Facebook.  Commissioner Boothe-Schmidt agrees that having it in the morning doesn’t give 

everyone the ability to run for office.  Chair Taylor echoed what has been said and began 

further discussions on next steps.  It was the consensus of the Board to solicit public input and 

continue the discussion at this meeting. 

Staff put out notifications of a brief 2 question survey to solicit input on what days and times 

would be most beneficial to them.  The survey was published on April 27th and closed on May 

19th.  We received 7 responses and the results of the survey questions are attached for your 

consideration as you continue the discussion. 

  25



  26



  27



Date: May 20, 2021 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda item 9.a Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Cannon Beach 

 

This IGA with Cannon Beach is for the continued operation of the Cannon Beach Shuttle. We 

have been operating the shuttle under an IGA with the City for several years.  The change in the 

IGA is the amount we charge to operate the routes.  We currently charge $66.00 per hour and 

we will continue with that rate and then increase it in year two of the agreement to $68.00 per 

hour (+3%).  Under this Agreement, we operate Route 17 in Cannon Beach Monday through 

Friday during the summer months and Route 21 in Cannon Beach on the weekends year round, 

however they are not charged for the service of Route 21 while we operate the Seaside 

Streetcar during the Summer. 

 

Staff is recommending that the Board approve the IGA with Cannon Beach to operate the 

Cannon Beach Shuttle and authorize the Executive Director and Board Chair to sign the 

Agreement. 

  28



  29



  30



  31



  32



  33



  34



  35



  36



  37



  38



Date: May 20, 2021 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda item 9.b Translation Services 

 

At the budget meeting, Commissioner Nino inquired about translation services for outreach 

materials that we generate.  We had been relying on staff that are bilingual for translating 

materials into Spanish versions.  Unfortunately, due to the different dialects of Spanish there 

were conflicts in the translations.  We were told that Microsoft Word had a good translation 

function that was fairly universal.  Commissioner Nino disagreed with what we had been told.   

 

After the budget meeting, I went into the State of Oregon’s procurement program to see what 

professional services are under contract with the State to provide translation services.  I also 

reached out to all of the transit agencies in Oregon to see who they use.  I selected five  

companies that are under contract with the State to compare pricing.  Some of them are used 

by other transit agencies in Oregon.   

 

As an estimate, we generate approximately 120 documents a year that need to be translated.  

These include press releases, news and signs that average 250 on average.  Using those 

numbers and comparing the five organizations, the annual cost to translate these materials 

would be $2,190-$11,400 per year. 

 

I also reached out to a member of the Latinx community not affiliated with SETD to ask them 

about the use of Microsoft Word and its ability to provide a culturally sensitive translation.  Her 

response was “Hi Jeff, thank you for being aware of this sensitive issue.  The materials could be 

translated from the Word program, but they need to be revised for accuracy.  In general, it gives 

the sense of the information but the tense and the formal/informal wording like (tu and usted) 

needs to be fixed.” 

 

Staff is seeking guidance from the Board on whether we should contract with a company that 

provides translation services.  If the consensus of the Board is to do that, we can make 

suggested changes during the Budget Hearing on June 24th. 

  39



Passport to Languages LanguageLine Services The Spanish Group 

Oregon Translation 

dba Verbio

Oregon Certified 

Interpreter's Network

Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate

$55.00 $99.00 $20.79 $95.00 $48.00

$0.24 $0.00 $0.073 $0.19 $0.20

$0.23 $0.00 $73.00 $190.00 $0.19

Rate Rate Rate Rate Rate

$0.40 N/A $0.15 $0.10 $0.48

$0.30 $0.00 $0.15 $0.06 $0.32

$0.24 $0.00 $0.073 $0.03 $0.28

Yamhill County 

Transportation District SMART (Wilsonville)

Confederated Tribes 

of the Umatilla 

Woodburn Transit

Rush (24 hour turnaround)

ASAP (48 hour turnaround)

Rates for Translations

Emergency Rates for Translations

Service

Minimum Fee

Per Word Cost

Per 1,000 word

Service

Expedited (2 hour turnaround)

  40



Date: May 20, 2021 

To: Board of Commissioners 

From: Jeff Hazen 

Re: Agenda Item 9.c Route Schedule Changes 

In an effort to address bus on-time performance and to make our system more reliable, Paul 

has reviewed our schedules along with the data collected to make adjustments to our 

schedules for the summer months.  He will be sharing these changes along with the additional 

frequency that we will be providing on Route 101 with funding awarded to us from the CARES 

Act.   

We would like to implement these changes effective on July 1st to give us time to do public 

outreach on the changes and to solicit input on the changes.  This will return to the Board at the 

June 24th meeting for final approval. 

Staff is recommending that the Board provide any comments they may have on the changes. 

  41



Transit Center 5:55 AM 7:00 AM 8:14 AM 9:26 AM 10:38 AM 11:50 AM 1:07 PM 2:19 PM 3:31 PM 4:43 PM 6:00 PM 7:12 PM 8:24 PM

Liberty Theater 5:57 AM 7:02 AM 8:16 AM 9:28 AM 10:40 AM 11:52 AM 1:09 PM 2:21 PM 3:33 PM 4:45 PM 6:02 PM 7:14 PM 8:26 PM

Columbia Memorial Hospital 5:59 AM 7:04 AM 8:18 AM 9:30 AM 10:42 AM 11:54 AM 1:11 PM 2:23 PM 3:35 PM 4:47 PM 6:04 PM 7:16 PM 8:28 PM

Astoria Safeway 6:02 AM 7:07 AM 8:21 AM 9:33 AM 10:45 AM 11:57 AM 1:14 PM 2:26 PM 3:38 PM 4:50 PM 6:07 PM 7:19 PM 8:31 PM

45th St & Leif Erickson 6:04 AM 7:09 AM 8:23 AM 9:35 AM 10:47 AM 11:59 AM 1:16 PM 2:28 PM 3:40 PM 4:52 PM 6:09 PM 7:21 PM 8:33 PM

Mitscher Shelter Bus Stop 6:14 AM 7:19 AM 8:33 AM 9:45 AM 10:57 AM 12:09 PM 1:26 PM 2:38 PM 3:50 PM 5:02 PM 6:19 PM 7:31 PM 8:43 PM

MERTS Campus - 7:24 AM - - - 12:14 PM - - - 5:07 PM - - -

Job Corp Center 6:18 AM 7:28 AM 8:37 AM 9:49 AM 11:01 AM 12:18 PM 1:30 PM 2:42 PM 3:54 PM 5:11 PM 6:23 PM 7:35 PM 8:47 PM

45th & Cedar 6:24 AM 7:34 AM 8:43 AM 9:55 AM 11:07 AM 12:24 PM 1:36 PM 2:48 PM 4:00 PM 5:17 PM 6:29 PM 7:41 PM 8:53 PM

Astoria Safeway 6:26 AM 7:36 AM 8:45 AM 9:57 AM 11:09 AM 12:26 PM 1:38 PM 2:50 PM 4:02 PM 5:19 PM 6:31 PM 7:43 PM 8:55 PM

Gateway Apartments 6:28 AM 7:38 AM 8:47 AM 9:59 AM 11:11 AM 12:28 PM 1:40 PM 2:52 PM 4:04 PM 5:21 PM 6:33 PM 7:45 PM 8:57 PM

Columbia Memorial Hospital 6:30 AM 7:40 AM 8:49 AM 10:01 AM 11:13 AM 12:30 PM 1:42 PM 2:54 PM 4:06 PM 5:23 PM 6:35 PM 7:47 PM 8:59 PM

Duane St & 9th St. 6:33 AM 7:43 AM 8:52 AM 10:04 AM 11:16 AM 12:33 PM 1:45 PM 2:57 PM 4:09 PM 5:26 PM 6:38 PM 7:50 PM 9:02 PM

Transit Center 6:34 AM 7:44 AM 8:53 AM 10:05 AM 11:17 AM 12:34 PM 1:46 PM 2:58 PM 4:10 PM 5:27 PM 6:39 PM 7:51 PM 9:03 PM

Liberty Theater 6:36 AM 7:46 AM 8:55 AM 10:07 AM 11:19 AM 12:36 PM 1:48 PM 3:00 PM 4:12 PM 5:29 PM 6:41 PM 7:53 PM 9:05 PM

Clatsop Community College 6:39 AM 7:49 AM 8:58 AM 10:10 AM 11:22 AM 12:39 PM 1:51 PM 3:03 PM 4:15 PM 5:32 PM 6:44 PM 7:56 PM 9:08 PM

Peter Pan Market 6:43 AM 7:53 AM 9:02 AM 10:14 AM 11:26 AM 12:43 PM 1:55 PM 3:07 PM 4:19 PM 5:36 PM 6:48 PM 8:00 PM 9:12 PM

Short Stop 6:45 AM 7:55 AM 9:04 AM 10:16 AM 11:28 AM 12:45 PM 1:57 PM 3:09 PM 4:21 PM 5:38 PM 6:50 PM 8:02 PM 9:14 PM

Astoria High School 6:47 AM 7:57 AM 9:06 AM 10:18 AM 11:30 AM 12:47 PM 1:59 PM 3:11 PM 4:23 PM 5:40 PM 6:52 PM 8:04 PM 9:16 PM

Alameda & Glasco 6:49 AM 7:59 AM 9:08 AM 10:20 AM 11:32 AM 12:49 PM 2:01 PM 3:13 PM 4:25 PM 5:42 PM 6:54 PM 8:06 PM 9:18 PM

Alameda & Florence 6:50 AM 8:00 AM 9:09 AM 10:21 AM 11:33 AM 12:50 PM 2:02 PM 3:14 PM 4:26 PM 5:43 PM 6:55 PM 8:07 PM 9:19 PM

Transit Center 6:57 AM 8:07 AM 9:16 AM 10:28 AM 11:40 AM 12:57 PM 2:09 PM 3:21 PM 4:33 PM 5:50 PM 7:02 PM 8:14 PM 9:26 PM

WEEKDAY ROUTE 10 - Draft 5/7/21

  42



Route 13 Weekend - Draft 5/18/20
Astoria Transit Center 9:55 AM 10:35 AM 11:15 AM 11:55 AM 12:35 PM 1:15 PM 1:55 PM 2:35 PM 3:15 PM

Liberty Theater 9:57 AM 10:37 AM 11:17 AM 11:57 AM 12:37 PM 1:17 PM 1:57 PM 2:37 PM 3:17 PM

Columbia Memorial Hospital Eastbound 9:59 AM 10:39 AM 11:19 AM 11:59 AM 12:39 PM 1:19 PM 1:59 PM 2:39 PM 3:19 PM

Safeway Eastbound 10:02 AM 10:42 AM 11:22 AM 12:02 PM 12:42 PM 1:22 PM 2:02 PM 2:42 PM 3:22 PM

Mitscher Shelter Bus Stop 10:09 AM 10:49 AM 11:29 AM 12:09 PM 12:49 PM 1:29 PM 2:09 PM 2:49 PM 3:29 PM

Tongue Point 10:14 AM 10:54 AM 11:34 AM 12:14 PM 12:54 PM 1:34 PM 2:14 PM 2:54 PM 3:34 PM

45th & Cedar 10:18 AM 10:58 AM 11:38 AM 12:18 PM 12:58 PM 1:38 PM 2:18 PM 2:58 PM 3:38 PM

Safeway Westbound 10:20 AM 11:00 AM 11:40 AM 12:20 PM 1:00 PM 1:40 PM 2:20 PM 3:00 PM 3:40 PM

Columbia Memorial Hospital Westbound 10:22 AM 11:02 AM 11:42 AM 12:22 PM 1:02 PM 1:42 PM 2:22 PM 3:02 PM 3:42 PM

Astoria Transit Center 10:25 AM 11:05 AM 11:45 AM 12:25 PM 1:05 PM 1:45 PM 2:25 PM 3:05 PM 3:45 PM

  43



WEEKDAY ROUTE 15 - Draft 5/7/21
Fred Meyer 5:50 AM 6:40 AM 7:30 AM 8:20 AM 9:10 AM 10:00 AM 10:50 AM 11:40 AM 12:30 PM

Mini Mart 5:53 AM 6:43 AM 7:33 AM 8:23 AM 9:13 AM 10:03 AM 10:53 AM 11:43 AM 12:33 PM

Hammond 4-way 5:59 AM 6:49 AM 7:39 AM 8:29 AM 9:19 AM 10:09 AM 10:59 AM 11:49 AM 12:39 PM

KOA/Ft Stevens 6:01 AM 6:51 AM 7:41 AM 8:31 AM 9:21 AM 10:11 AM 11:01 AM 11:51 AM 12:41 PM

2nd & Alder 6:08 AM 6:58 AM 7:48 AM 8:38 AM 9:28 AM 10:18 AM 11:08 AM 11:58 AM 12:48 PM

Mini Mart 6:09 AM 6:59 AM 7:49 AM 8:39 AM 9:29 AM 10:19 AM 11:09 AM 11:59 AM 12:49 PM

Fred Meyer 6:12 AM 7:02 AM 7:52 AM 8:42 AM 9:32 AM 10:22 AM 11:12 AM 12:02 PM 12:52 PM

Walmart 6:16 AM 7:06 AM 7:56 AM 8:46 AM 9:36 AM 10:26 AM 11:16 AM 12:06 PM 12:56 PM

Huckleberry 6:18 AM 7:08 AM 7:58 AM 8:48 AM 9:38 AM 10:28 AM 11:18 AM 12:08 PM 12:58 PM

19th Avenue 6:19 AM 7:09 AM 7:59 AM 8:49 AM 9:39 AM 10:29 AM 11:19 AM 12:09 PM 12:59 PM

Main St & Ft Stevens Spur 6:22 AM 7:12 AM 8:02 AM 8:52 AM 9:42 AM 10:32 AM 11:22 AM 12:12 PM 1:02 PM

Mini Mart 6:27 AM 7:17 AM 8:07 AM 8:57 AM 9:47 AM 10:37 AM 11:27 AM 12:17 PM 1:07 PM

Fred Meyer 6:30 AM 7:20 AM 8:10 AM 9:00 AM 9:50 AM 10:40 AM 11:30 AM 12:20 PM 1:10 PM

Mini Mart - - - - - - - - -

Fred Meyer 1:20 PM 2:10 PM 3:00 PM 3:50 PM 4:40 PM 5:30 PM 6:20 PM 7:10 PM 8:00 PM

Mini Mart 1:23 PM 2:13 PM 3:03 PM 3:53 PM 4:43 PM 5:33 PM 6:23 PM 7:13 PM 8:03 PM

Hammond 4-way 1:29 PM 2:19 PM 3:09 PM 3:59 PM 4:49 PM 5:39 PM 6:29 PM 7:19 PM 8:09 PM

KOA/Ft Stevens 1:31 PM 2:21 PM 3:11 PM 4:01 PM 4:51 PM 5:41 PM 6:31 PM 7:21 PM 8:11 PM

2nd & Alder 1:38 PM 2:28 PM 3:18 PM 4:08 PM 4:58 PM 5:48 PM 6:38 PM 7:28 PM 8:18 PM

Mini Mart 1:39 PM 2:29 PM 3:19 PM 4:09 PM 4:59 PM 5:49 PM 6:39 PM 7:29 PM 8:19 PM

Fred Meyer 1:42 PM 2:32 PM 3:22 PM 4:12 PM 5:02 PM 5:52 PM 6:42 PM 7:32 PM 8:22 PM

Walmart 1:46 PM 2:36 PM 3:26 PM 4:16 PM 5:06 PM 5:56 PM 6:46 PM 7:36 PM 8:26 PM

Huckleberry 1:48 PM 2:38 PM 3:28 PM 4:18 PM 5:08 PM 5:58 PM 6:48 PM 7:38 PM 8:28 PM

19th Avenue 1:49 PM 2:39 PM 3:29 PM 4:19 PM 5:09 PM 5:59 PM 6:49 PM 7:39 PM 8:29 PM

Main St & Ft Stevens Spur 1:52 PM 2:42 PM 3:32 PM 4:22 PM 5:12 PM 6:02 PM 6:52 PM 7:42 PM 8:32 PM

Mini Mart 1:57 PM 2:47 PM 3:37 PM 4:27 PM 5:17 PM 6:07 PM 6:57 PM 7:47 PM 8:37 PM

Fred Meyer 2:00 PM 2:50 PM 3:40 PM 4:30 PM 5:20 PM 6:10 PM 7:00 PM 7:50 PM 8:40 PM

Mini Mart - - - - - - - - 8:43 PM

  44



WEEKDAY ROUTE 16 - Draft 4/5/21
Fred Meyer 7:42 AM 8:32 AM 9:22 AM 10:12 AM 11:02 AM 11:52 AM 12:42 PM 1:32 PM 2:22 PM 3:12 PM 4:02 PM 4:52 PM

Mini Mart 7:45 AM 8:35 AM 9:25 AM 10:15 AM 11:05 AM 11:55 AM 12:45 PM 1:35 PM 2:25 PM 3:15 PM 4:05 PM 4:55 PM

Hammond 4-way 7:51 AM 8:41 AM 9:31 AM 10:21 AM 11:11 AM 12:01 PM 12:51 PM 1:41 PM 2:31 PM 3:21 PM 4:11 PM 5:01 PM

KOA/Ft Stevens 7:53 AM 8:43 AM 9:33 AM 10:23 AM 11:13 AM 12:03 PM 12:53 PM 1:43 PM 2:33 PM 3:23 PM 4:13 PM 5:03 PM

2nd & Alder 8:00 AM 8:50 AM 9:40 AM 10:30 AM 11:20 AM 12:10 PM 1:00 PM 1:50 PM 2:40 PM 3:30 PM 4:20 PM 5:10 PM

Mini Mart 8:01 AM 8:51 AM 9:41 AM 10:31 AM 11:21 AM 12:11 PM 1:01 PM 1:51 PM 2:41 PM 3:31 PM 4:21 PM 5:11 PM

Fred Meyer 8:04 AM 8:54 AM 9:44 AM 10:34 AM 11:24 AM 12:14 PM 1:04 PM 1:54 PM 2:44 PM 3:34 PM 4:24 PM 5:14 PM

Walmart 8:08 AM 8:58 AM 9:48 AM 10:38 AM 11:28 AM 12:18 PM 1:08 PM 1:58 PM 2:48 PM 3:38 PM 4:28 PM 5:18 PM

Huckleberry 8:10 AM 9:00 AM 9:50 AM 10:40 AM 11:30 AM 12:20 PM 1:10 PM 2:00 PM 2:50 PM 3:40 PM 4:30 PM 5:20 PM

19th Avenue 8:11 AM 9:01 AM 9:51 AM 10:41 AM 11:31 AM 12:21 PM 1:11 PM 2:01 PM 2:51 PM 3:41 PM 4:31 PM 5:21 PM

Main St & Ft Stevens Spur 8:14 AM 9:04 AM 9:54 AM 10:44 AM 11:34 AM 12:24 PM 1:14 PM 2:04 PM 2:54 PM 3:44 PM 4:34 PM 5:24 PM

Mini Mart 8:19 AM 9:09 AM 9:59 AM 10:49 AM 11:39 AM 12:29 PM 1:19 PM 2:09 PM 2:59 PM 3:49 PM 4:39 PM 5:29 PM

Fred Meyer 8:22 AM 9:12 AM 10:02 AM 10:52 AM 11:42 AM 12:32 PM 1:22 PM 2:12 PM 3:02 PM 3:52 PM 4:42 PM 5:32 PM

  45



Seaside Cinema 6:00 AM 7:00 AM 8:00 AM 9:00 AM 10:00 AM 11:00 AM 12:28 PM 1:56 PM 3:24 PM 4:52 PM 6:20 PM 7:43 PM 8:43 PM
Ave A across from MacDonald's 6:04 AM 7:04 AM 8:04 AM 9:04 AM 10:04 AM 11:05 AM 12:33 PM 2:01 PM 3:29 PM 4:57 PM 6:25 PM 7:47 PM 8:47 PM
Candy Kitchen 6:17 AM 7:17 AM 8:17 AM 9:17 AM 10:17 AM 11:22 AM 12:50 PM 2:18 PM 3:46 PM 5:14 PM 6:42 PM 8:00 PM 9:00 PM
Coaster Theatre 6:18 AM 7:18 AM 8:18 AM 9:18 AM 10:18 AM 11:24 AM 12:52 PM 2:20 PM 3:48 PM 5:16 PM 6:44 PM 8:01 PM 9:01 PM
Family Market 6:20 AM 7:20 AM 8:20 AM 9:20 AM 10:20 AM 11:27 AM 12:55 PM 2:23 PM 3:51 PM 5:19 PM 6:47 PM 8:03 PM 9:03 PM
RV Park 6:22 AM 7:22 AM 8:22 AM 9:22 AM 10:22 AM 11:30 AM 12:58 PM 2:26 PM 3:54 PM 5:22 PM 6:50 PM 8:05 PM 9:05 PM
Surcrest Market 6:26 AM 7:26 AM 8:26 AM 9:26 AM 10:26 AM 11:36 AM 1:04 PM 2:32 PM 4:00 PM 5:28 PM 6:56 PM 8:09 PM 9:09 PM
Tolovana 6:27 AM 7:27 AM 8:27 AM 9:27 AM 10:27 AM 11:37 AM 1:05 PM 2:33 PM 4:01 PM 5:29 PM 6:57 PM 8:10 PM 9:10 PM
Brailler & Hemlock 6:29 AM 7:29 AM 8:29 AM 9:29 AM 10:29 AM 11:39 AM 1:07 PM 2:35 PM 4:03 PM 5:31 PM 6:59 PM 8:12 PM 9:12 PM
Wayside Inn 6:31 AM 7:31 AM 8:31 AM 9:31 AM 10:31 AM 11:42 AM 1:10 PM 2:38 PM 4:06 PM 5:34 PM 7:02 PM 8:14 PM 9:14 PM
Yukon & Hemlock 6:32 AM 7:32 AM 8:32 AM 9:32 AM 10:32 AM 11:44 AM 1:12 PM 2:40 PM 4:08 PM 5:36 PM 7:04 PM 8:15 PM 9:15 PM
Midtown 6:34 AM 7:34 AM 8:34 AM 9:34 AM 10:34 AM 11:56 AM 1:24 PM 2:52 PM 4:20 PM 5:48 PM 7:16 PM 8:17 PM 9:17 PM
Cannon Beach Visitor Center 6:37 AM 7:37 AM 8:37 AM 9:37 AM 10:37 AM 12:00 PM 1:28 PM 2:56 PM 4:24 PM 5:52 PM 7:20 PM 8:20 PM 9:20 PM
Seaside Hospital 6:50 AM 7:50 AM 8:50 AM 9:50 AM 10:50 AM 12:13 PM 1:41 PM 3:09 PM 4:37 PM 6:05 PM 7:33 PM 8:33 PM 9:33 PM
Seaside Cinema 6:55 AM 7:55 AM 8:55 AM 9:55 AM 10:55 AM 12:18 PM 1:46 PM 3:14 PM 4:42 PM 6:10 PM 7:38 PM 8:38 PM 9:38 PM

ROUTE 20 WEEKDAYS - Draft 5/7/21

  46



ROUTE 101 WEEKDAY Draft 5/18/21
Transit Center 6:00 AM 6:52 AM 7:44 AM 8:36 AM 9:28 AM 10:20 AM 11:12 AM 12:04 PM 12:30 PM 12:56 PM 1:22 PM 1:48 PM 2:14 PM

Fred Meyer 6:10 AM 7:02 AM 7:54 AM 8:46 AM 9:38 AM 10:30 AM 11:22 AM 12:14 PM 12:42 PM 1:08 PM 1:34 PM 2:00 PM 2:26 PM

Camp Rilea 6:13 AM 7:05 AM 7:57 AM 8:49 AM 9:41 AM 10:33 AM 11:25 AM 12:17 PM 12:46 PM 1:12 PM 1:38 PM 2:04 PM 2:30 PM

Sunset Beach 6:17 AM 7:09 AM 8:01 AM 8:53 AM 9:45 AM 10:37 AM 11:29 AM 12:21 PM 12:51 PM 1:17 PM 1:43 PM 2:09 PM 2:35 PM

Highlands 6:22 AM 7:14 AM 8:06 AM 8:58 AM 9:50 AM 10:42 AM 11:34 AM 12:26 PM 12:57 PM 1:23 PM 1:49 PM 2:15 PM 2:41 PM

Bowling Alley 6:32 AM 7:24 AM 8:16 AM 9:08 AM 10:00 AM 10:52 AM 11:44 AM 12:36 PM 1:09 PM 1:35 PM 2:01 PM 2:27 PM 2:53 PM

Seaside Cinema 6:37 AM 7:29 AM 8:21 AM 9:13 AM 10:05 AM 10:57 AM 11:49 AM 12:41 PM 1:15 PM 1:41 PM 2:07 PM 2:33 PM 2:59 PM

Ave. A 6:41 AM 7:33 AM 8:25 AM 9:17 AM 10:09 AM 11:01 AM 11:53 AM 12:45 PM 1:20 PM 1:46 PM 2:12 PM 2:38 PM 3:04 PM

Ave. U 6:45 AM 7:37 AM 8:29 AM 9:21 AM 10:13 AM 11:05 AM 11:57 AM 12:49 PM 1:25 PM 1:51 PM 2:17 PM 2:43 PM 3:09 PM

McDonalds 6:00 AM 6:49 AM 7:41 AM 8:33 AM 9:25 AM 10:17 AM 11:09 AM 12:01 PM 12:53 PM 1:30 PM 1:56 PM 2:22 PM 2:48 PM 3:14 PM

Seaside Cinema 6:02 AM 6:51 AM 7:43 AM 8:35 AM 9:27 AM 10:19 AM 11:11 AM 12:03 PM 12:55 PM 1:33 PM 1:59 PM 2:25 PM 2:51 PM 3:17 PM

Dollar General 6:07 AM 6:56 AM 7:48 AM 8:40 AM 9:32 AM 10:24 AM 11:16 AM 12:08 PM 1:00 PM 1:39 PM 2:05 PM 2:31 PM 2:57 PM 3:23 PM

Sunset Beach 6:16 AM 7:05 AM 7:57 AM 8:49 AM 9:41 AM 10:33 AM 11:25 AM 12:17 PM 1:09 PM 1:50 PM 2:16 PM 2:42 PM 3:08 PM 3:34 PM

Camp Rilea 6:21 AM 7:10 AM 8:02 AM 8:54 AM 9:46 AM 10:38 AM 11:30 AM 12:22 PM 1:14 PM 1:56 PM 2:22 PM 2:48 PM 3:14 PM 3:40 PM

Ensign & 101 6:24 AM 7:13 AM 8:05 AM 8:57 AM 9:49 AM 10:41 AM 11:33 AM 12:25 PM 1:17 PM 2:00 PM 2:26 PM 2:52 PM 3:18 PM 3:44 PM

Fred Meyer 6:29 AM 7:18 AM 8:10 AM 9:02 AM 9:54 AM 10:46 AM 11:38 AM 12:30 PM 1:22 PM 2:06 PM 2:32 PM 2:58 PM 3:24 PM 3:50 PM

Transit Center 6:40 AM 7:29 AM 8:21 AM 9:13 AM 10:05 AM 10:57 AM 11:49 AM 12:41 PM 1:33 PM 2:19 PM 2:45 PM 3:11 PM 3:37 PM 4:03 PM

Transit Center 2:40 PM 3:06 PM 3:32 PM 3:58 PM 4:24 PM 4:50 PM 5:16 PM 5:42 PM 6:08 PM 6:54 PM 7:31 PM 8:23 PM

Fred Meyer 2:52 PM 3:18 PM 3:44 PM 4:10 PM 4:36 PM 5:02 PM 5:28 PM 5:54 PM 6:20 PM 7:04 PM 7:41 PM 8:33 PM

Camp Rilea 2:56 PM 3:22 PM 3:48 PM 4:14 PM 4:40 PM 5:06 PM 5:32 PM 5:58 PM 6:24 PM 7:07 PM 7:44 PM 8:36 PM

Sunset Beach 3:01 PM 3:27 PM 3:53 PM 4:19 PM 4:45 PM 5:11 PM 5:37 PM 6:03 PM 6:29 PM 7:11 PM 7:48 PM 8:40 PM

Highlands 3:07 PM 3:33 PM 3:59 PM 4:25 PM 4:51 PM 5:17 PM 5:43 PM 6:09 PM 6:35 PM 7:16 PM 7:53 PM 8:45 PM

Bowling Alley 3:19 PM 3:45 PM 4:11 PM 4:37 PM 5:03 PM 5:29 PM 5:55 PM 6:21 PM 6:47 PM 7:26 PM 8:03 PM 8:55 PM

Seaside Cinema 3:25 PM 3:51 PM 4:17 PM 4:43 PM 5:09 PM 5:35 PM 6:01 PM 6:27 PM 6:53 PM 7:31 PM 8:08 PM 9:00 PM

Ave. A 3:30 PM 3:56 PM 4:22 PM 4:48 PM 5:14 PM 5:40 PM 6:06 PM 6:32 PM 6:58 PM 7:35 PM 8:12 PM 9:04 PM

Ave. U 3:35 PM 4:01 PM 4:27 PM 4:53 PM 5:19 PM 5:45 PM 6:11 PM 6:37 PM 7:03 PM 7:39 PM 8:16 PM 9:08 PM

McDonalds 3:40 PM 4:06 PM 4:32 PM 4:58 PM 5:24 PM 5:50 PM 6:16 PM 6:42 PM 7:08 PM 7:43 PM 8:20 PM 9:12 PM

Seaside Cinema 3:43 PM 4:09 PM 4:35 PM 5:01 PM 5:27 PM 5:53 PM 6:19 PM 6:45 PM 7:11 PM 7:45 PM 8:22 PM 9:14 PM

Dollar General 3:49 PM 4:15 PM 4:41 PM 5:07 PM 5:33 PM 5:59 PM 6:25 PM 6:51 PM 7:17 PM 7:50 PM 8:27 PM 9:19 PM

Sunset Beach 4:00 PM 4:26 PM 4:52 PM 5:18 PM 5:44 PM 6:10 PM 6:36 PM 7:02 PM 7:28 PM 7:59 PM 8:36 PM 9:28 PM

Camp Rilea 4:06 PM 4:32 PM 4:58 PM 5:24 PM 5:50 PM 6:16 PM 6:42 PM 7:08 PM 7:34 PM 8:04 PM 8:41 PM 9:33 PM

Ensign & 101 4:10 PM 4:36 PM 5:02 PM 5:28 PM 5:54 PM 6:20 PM 6:46 PM 7:12 PM 7:38 PM 8:07 PM 8:44 PM 9:36 PM

Fred Meyer 4:16 PM 4:42 PM 5:08 PM 5:34 PM 6:00 PM 6:26 PM 6:52 PM 7:18 PM 7:44 PM 8:12 PM 8:49 PM 9:41 PM

Transit Center 4:29 PM 4:55 PM 5:21 PM 5:47 PM 6:13 PM 6:39 PM 7:05 PM 7:31 PM 7:57 PM 8:23 PM 9:00 PM 9:52 PM

  47



Executive Director Report 

May 2021 Board Meeting 

Jeff Hazen  

 

-Ridership   

We were up 20% in ridership for April.  YTD, we are down 35% in ridership. This is the first 

full month of results compared to last year’s numbers after the pandemic shut down.   

 

 
 

 

-Grants 

All of the recommendations for transit funding were approved by the Oregon Transportation 

Commission at their May 13th meeting.  ODOT staff is now working on over 350 grant 

agreements to get out to the agencies. 

 

-Vaccination Transportation 

RideAssist has provided 126 rides so far for vaccinations.  The shuttle buses have provided 185 

rides.  During the monthly area manager meeting, I learned that some people were walking to the 

fairgrounds to get vaccinated, so Mary put out another press release about our transportation 

program. 

 

 

 

 

April

TY LY

10 2,041 2,297 -11%

11 0 0 #DIV/0!

12 0 0 #DIV/0!

13 154 202 -24%

15 1,206 1,101 10%

16 225 229 -2%

17 0 0 #DIV/0!

20 1,749 932 88%

21 230 85 171%

101A 2,949 2,425 22%

101B 2,827 2,359 20%

101 Total 5,776 4,784 21%

LCC 599 254 136%

PC 873 820 6%

SC 0 0 #DIV/0!

Total 12,853 10,704 20%

YTD 119,339 183,241 -35%

  48



-E-Fare 

We anticipate the roll out of Token Transit to occur on June 28th.  This gives us time to train 

everyone, including Board members on how it works so they can help riders.  It was great to hear 

that Token Transit in Pacific County, WA is using it! 

 

-Insurance 

I’ll be meeting with our insurance representative on Monday, May 24th to go over our insurance 

renewals.  I’m concerned with information that he sent out on the 19th about Cyber insurance and 

what is going on in the marketplace.  I’ll get more information and share it at the Board meeting. 

 

-National Bus Roadeo 

I’m on the planning committee for the National Bus Roadeo that will be held in conjunction with 

the CTAA Expo in Richmond, VA in November.  This is a great opportunity for drivers to show 

off their skill!  There’s an obstacle course, a pre-trip check competition, a wheelchair securement 

competition and a written test.  There are two divisions, vans and cutaway buses.   

 

 

  

 

2019-2021 SETD Priorities  

   

Priority One   

   

• Benchmark Services   

o Ridership Increases & Decreases  YTD (35%)   

o On-time Performance  in April, we were 56.% on time.  TCTD was 66.1% and 

Lincoln County was 52.1%. 

o Fleet reliability   

o Employee Retention  24.1% turnover YTD. 

   

• Develop a SETD specific emergency plan.  Currently working on. 

o SETD operational specific emergency operation plan   

o Medical emergencies   

o Accidents   

o Behavioral emergencies at facilities and on buses   

o Emergency contact and reporting requirements   

o Strategic county wide transportation plan that integrates into Clatsop County 

Emergency Plan. 

  

• Develop a Succession Plan for Key Management Positions Kelly will also be attending 

the HR Answers training in the Spring along with two non-supervisor employees.  

Jennifer will be attending the Emerging Leaders Academy put on by CTAA.  This is a 9 

month program that begins in September.  She’ll receive mentorship throughout the 

  49



program, she’ll design a Capstone Project to meet the needs of the District or community, 

she’ll meet transit leaders from across the country, she’ll learn best practices from 

different agencies, she’ll learn what her personal strengths are and improve her 

weaknesses, and she’ll be a part of a monthly leadership study group to further develop 

her leadership skills.  One thing that they have added for this class is a field trip.  Jennifer 

will travel to Washington, DC and walk the halls of Capitol Hill with CTAA Board 

members and staff as well as visit with the leadership at the FTA to discussing transit 

policy, funding, regulations and more.  This is an exciting opportunity for Jennifer that 

will set her up for future rolls in the District! 

• Develop Route Standards

o Summer Schedule Implementation July 1st

o September Through May Schedule

• Develop Demand Management Standards

o Paratransit

o Dial a Ride

o First Mile Last Mile

• Increasing services

o Fixed routes   Astoria weekend service started in October of 2019.  Additional

service improvements began on February 3rd.  Seaside Weekend Route to start in

February, 2022

• Improving System

o Improved lighting at bus shelters  New Shelters have arrived.

o Route on-time performances   .

o Amenities

Priority One (continued) 

• Technologies

o E-fare  RFQ delayed until after the holidays  In the process of on-boarding with

Token Transit.  Updated rollout date of June 28th

o Electronic charging stations on buses

o On-board wi-fi

• Improve Appearance

o Buses   Buses are now wiped down every four hours.

o Shelters

o Facilities

  50



Priority Two  

• Develop feasibility of moving Warrenton Operations facility Submitted a Needs Based

Cares Grant for this project but it wasn’t funded.  Will seek a §5339 grant when it

becomes available, and use carry over STIF funds for match.

o Out of the inundation zone

o Upgrade to include an automatic bus washing system

• Begin to convert the fleet to electric and away from fossil fuels  Unsuccessful for the

LowNo grant solicitation.  Waiting for firm plans and funding of the operations facility

before we go after the grant again.

• Strategically Locate Park and Rides Kathy has been doing some work on this in TO.

Have started vaccinations shuttles from the transit center and the Seaside cinema.

• Improve District Signage

Priority Three  

• Identify new funding opportunities

o Seek public/private partnerships

o Continue to explore new Federal/State/Local grant opportunities  CARES Act has

provided us $500,000 in formula funds.  The needs-based program has approved

us for $861,000.  Veteran’s grant has been approved at a higher amount than

requested and is being extended. We received another needs-based grant for the

purchase of a driver supervisor vehicle.  We asked for two but were only funded

for one.  This grant also included funds for the continued purchase of COVID-19

disinfecting supplies.  We will be receiving over $500,000 in additional CARES

act funding and there will be more relief funding provided through the American

Rescue Plan.  We will be receiving a §5304 $60,000 grant to develop a marketing

plan.  We will be receiving a STIF discretionary grant to fund the Lower

Columbia Connector and purchase one new bus for it.

o Rebuild Ride Pal Program and Volunteer Program

  51



May 2021 Operations 

Paul Lewicki  

We continue to support the county vaccination clinics as well as riders needing transportation to 

other vaccination sites by providing free rides for this purpose.  Although our numbers to the 

clinics have not been high, we are doing our part to ensure everyone who needs a ride to get to a 

vaccination site can get one. 

We have taken delivery of the five bus shelters that were ordered from and manufactured by 

inmates at the Oregon Department of Corrections.  These shelters are currently being stored in 

the bus barn at Warrenton while we plan their installation projects.  Currently, we have begun 

planning for the shelter installation at the Sunset Beach stop.  This is a very busy stop and our 

riders will benefit from this new shelter especially during our stormy weather.  The shelters also 

include a solar powered lighting system for our riders’ safety and convenience.  

One of our new Arboc buses has been in Portland for two months following an accident at the 

Seaside hospital.  Procurement of necessary parts has held up the repairs, but the bus is expected 

to be returned to Warrenton this month.  Also, one of our Portland motorcoaches had been in the 

shop in Portland receiving repairs to the engine cooling system and a regular service.  This bus 

will be returned to Warrenton on May 19.  A third bus has been at Astoria Ford for three weeks 

for electrical repairs.  These buses being unavailable for service have caused us to have to run 

one of the older Bluebird buses on Route 15.   

We continue to work on updating our schedules to respond to COVID capacity issues and to 

accommodate the ridership patterns associated with the summertime in our service area.   

Ridership capacity concerns are being addressed with the addition of two new buses 

(remanufactured Gillig 35’ buses) which will be deployed on the Route 101.  Although we 

expected these buses to be delivered in May, they are now scheduled for a July delivery.  As with 

many processes, it appears that COVID related conditions have impacted the timely delivery of 

parts necessary to complete the assembly of these buses. 

We have completed our annual maintenance on our bus yard lighting.  Lighting is of course very 

important to the safety of our employees who roll out in darkness most of the year and return 

from their routes in darkness as well.  This year, in addition to refreshing the lighting, we 

restriped the parking lot.  This not only improves the appearance of the facility but improves the 

safety by making it easier for the drivers to park their buses accurately and safely at end of shift.  

Parking blocks will be installed as soon as we receive our new buses.  This will further improve 

safety. 

Reminder:  We will be launching our summer routes in Seaside and Cannon Beach at the end of 

May.  Our Seaside Streetcar which runs weekends in Seaside will begin service on May 29th.  

Our Cannon Beach weekday summer service will begin June 3rd and will run Monday through 

Fridays within Cannon Beach.  We have historically provided this service annually, however, 

due to the pandemic, we did not run these routes in 2020.  It is encouraging that we will again be 

providing this service in 2021. 

  52



RIDE ASSIST  

May 2021 Report 

Jennifer Geisler 

• In April, Ride Assist provided a total of 986 rides.  ADA Paratransit had 471 riders, we

provided 349 Medicaid rides for Northwest Rides, 4 VETP and had 54 escorts.  This is an

average of 32 rides per day.  There were zero ride denials for April.

• Dial a Ride did provide service for two ride requests.

• We delivered 82 produce boxes over the month. This is an average of 16 boxes per Thursday

delivery to homes between Seaside, Warrenton, and Astoria.

• In March SETD RideAssist provided 33 one-way rides for a COVID-19 vaccine clinic.  In

April we provided 75 curb to curb rides!

• I attended the SDAO Risk Management webinar on Workplace Violence and De-Escalation

Techniques.  This webinar counts toward the SDAO Academy that I have been involved with

since spring of 2020.  This is a three-year program that develops leadership, management skills

and an awareness of regulations and risks associated with operations of a special district.

• ADA Paratransit Report for April:

Number of completed applications received: 8   

Number of incomplete applications received: 1 

Number of determinations made:  

Within 21 days:4 

More than 21 days:4 

Determination by type: 

Unconditional:4 

Conditional:  

Temporary:     

Not eligible:    

Number of appeals requested: 0 Number of appeals heard: 0 

Ride Assist Fares Collected/Billed for March 2021 

• Para-transit Fares  $424 

• Dial-A-Ride  $24 

• Tickets Collected  $408 

• Medicaid Billed $6236 

• Ticket books sold $505 

• VETP Billed $122 

• Invoiced ADA rides $86 

  53



Mobility Management   

May 2021 Board Report 

Jason Jones  

● In April, I have worked with nine customers who needed help with scheduling and trip

planning.  As with last month, three students needed minimal assistance on using the bus

to get to after-school functions. I worked with five people who needed more extensive in-

person assessment and training opportunities and two others that needed schedule and

route assistance.  I enjoyed helping a person with a sight impairment learn how to use

transit over several weeks.  I made it a point to check up on several of these individuals to

track their progress, and in most cases, all of them made multiple rides on our buses.

● I am currently working on two new videos that will highlight one of our travel trainees

learning how to ride our bus and imparting some words of wisdom for others

contemplating using our services. These two videos will help cover some of the

challenges and successes of a person with a sight impairment learning to ride.  The rider

has lived in other areas of the country and used public transportation in those spots.  He

will have some tips that have worked for him in the past and mentioned how one-on-one

travel training helped him become more confident at riding our system.  There continue

to be people who do not want to ride the bus or be involved in in-person travel training

due to COVID-19.  The Vaccines are helping to give people more confidence, but there

are still some who are nervous about attending one-on-one training.  Thankfully, these

videos are providing some transit education for them regularly.

● The weekly Friday show is continuing strong with valuable topics and engaging

interviews with members of our community.  With better weather on the way, more

people will need some encouragement to ride Public Transportation, and this show helps

people do that. Don’t forget that you all are invited to watch our weekly talk show called

“Transportation in the Time of Corona.”  Friday mornings from 11-11:30 on Facebook

Live.  Remember that May is Bicycle Safety Month, and I would like to encourage you

all to go out and ride a bike.  We have a small challenge that we put out to our viewers to

send us a picture or story about their biking adventures.  We want them also to send us

photos of local landmarks they have encountered while riding their bikes.

● The Veterans Enhanced Transportation Program (VETP) spiked up a little in April, with

18 trips being conducted, constituting six individuals.  There were 5 Veterans that used

this program to get their COVID-19 Vaccination shot.  The VETP program is actively

looking for an additional Veteran Volunteer driver that can help us ramp our program up

in the coming months.  The Summer is an excellent time to bring a new person on board

as it is a little slower and the weather plays into our favor for training. If you know a

Veteran who would like to volunteer some of their time in their vehicle, please send them

my way. (jason@ridethebus.org or 503-861-5361) The program will reimburse them for

the miles they drive for the program.  We continue to serve a local Veteran with food box

delivery every other week.  We are thankful for Jennifer and her team at Paratransit still

helping our Veterans by preparing food boxes for us to deliver.

  54

mailto:jason@ridethebus.org


Transportation Options 

May 2021 Report to Board 

Kathy Kleczek 

As May has flown by, I reflect on the year that has gone by and all the change it brought with it.  We no longer 

consider it odd to meet virtually.  And yet it is still a challenge to consider Virtual Meetings or Working from 

home as a positive change for many.  As a Transportation Options proponent I like to present the perspective of 

how much benefit and saving can be derived from the new ability to “commute via virtual tools” or 

telecommuting.  By using the internet to travel to meetings or work we are saving those miles of travel along 

will all that in involved with it.  For those that are less mobile virtual meeting availability makes more 

connection and engagement possible.  Now in my enthusiasm I have not forgotten that virtual connection is also 

a challenge for many, especially in our rural area with less broadband speed and assistance resources.   The 

importance of broadband infrastructure has become a priority, locally and nationally.  Having broadband 

available more broadly has become a goal to further equity in outreach and opportunity.  I do look forward to 

being able to meet in person again, connecting face to face.  At the same time it is important to take the lessons 

of the last year and apply them to how we move forward.  The green house gas emissions and money saved are 

no small factor in why we should continue to make all the options available for folks to participate and work.  

Transportation in the Time of Corona live Facebook talks have become a fixture in my week.  It is a fantastic 

opportunity to explore local topics and how they or the people involved relate to transportation.  Jason and I 

work to explore connections and topics that are of a benefit to our Region.  We have hosted transportation board 

members, City or County Officials and also local experts on topics that are educational and fun to share.  The 

videos exist in a library of videos on Facebook, and I hope to expand that to YouTube to create more 

accessibility.  Zoom and Facebook were not cooperating for most of the month of May, so we had to resort to 

live pre-recoding the video.  Help us grow our audience and reach, join us LIVE on Facebook on Fridays at 

11AM, and share to your friends on Facebook   Make sure to check it out, like it and share it on your own page. 

May has been a month full of meetings with Community leaders, City or County officials, as well as Statewide 

groups, to make sure our elected officials are aware of Transportation Options in our Region.  The North Coast 

Tourism Management Network-Transportation Options group recently chose me to lead us for this year.  We 

are working on messaging to folks that are already at the coast, to help get people out of their cars when they 

travel in the area.  We are also looking at developing the connection between parking lots and ODOT’s 

TripCheck program via cameras.  This would give people a real-time view of parking availability before they 

head to particular lots.  I continue to participate with Statewide TO representatives to develop best practices 

when reaching out to the LEP communities in our region.  Currently we are developing a standard translation 

guide for TO Groups.  I started working with OBPAC to further statewide goals for bicycle and pedestrian 

safety.  ODOT priorities and goals have recently changed, and more emphasis is being put on Transportation 

Options including rolling out Bicycle Pedestrian projects across the State.  

Social Media-Get There Oregon 

• Outreach to grow NWTO users on GetThereOregon.org-LOG YOUR TELECOMMUTE!!!

• Promote Bicycle safety and awareness

• Live Facebook talks with Jason to educate about the importance of Transportation Options

• Plan series of shows to improve outreach and successful motivation from SOV for car free travel for vacation

Conference/Education

• Attended trainings by ODOT, SRTS Tourism groups network, learn and encourage implementation of TO

• Attended City and County meetings to stay informed and involved in planning to keeping TO at the table

• Webinars on how to help with long term positive travel behavior changes-transit-carpool-biking

• Leading Transportation Options Group for NCTMN- encourage stewardship of the Region and it’s resources

Safe Routes To School

• Bus rides for student field trips- Students ride free, outreach in Spanish about this

• Joined Oregon SRTS network and attending OR cohort meetings virtually

• Working with OPBAC to include Pedestrian and Biking safety in statewide planning

  55



Outreach and Education 

May 2021 Board Report  

Mary Parker 

OUTREACH and ANNOUNCEMENTS-  

Prepped and distributed announcements for the April Board Meeting 

Prepped Legal Ad Budget Meeting for Daily Astorian  

Prepared and distributed required public announcements for Budget Meeting 

Prepped and distributed Public Announcements for Budget Training 

Prepped March Board Minutes 

Prepped April Board Minutes 

Prepped Press Release for Covid Clinic Shuttle distributed and posted in shelters 

Posted Mechanic Job web and Facebook placed posting in shelters 

Updated Paratransit Brochure 

Helped design lay out bus wrap for new busses.  

Prepared and distributed Press Release for input for changing Board Meeting time and date also posted in shelters 

  56



Human Resources 
May 2021 Board Report 
Sue Farmer, Human Resources Manager 

MEETINGS/TRAININGS ATTENDED: 

• FTA Drug & Alcohol National Conference May 11 – 14th.

• FTA – Increasing Vaccine Confidence Among Transit Workers Webinar.

• LCHRMA Webinar on “What to Expect from the Biden Administration and NLRB.”

• Barron COVID

• SDAO Benefits

• SDAO Workplace Violence and De-escalation Techniques

• SDAO/HR Answers Adapting to Change and Overcoming Adversity

• LCHRMA Paid Family Leave

• SDAO Claims 101

• SDAO Diversity

• IPMA-HR  2021 Virtual Conference:  HR Trailblazers: Honor the Past, Forge the Future

• Continue to remain up to date on the local, state, and national COVID-19 information and how it
is impacting the workplace.

ACTIONS: 
➢ Open Enrollment Packets to employees.  Due June 1, 2021 with any additions or changes to

benefits.
➢ Prepared OFLA packets and tracked leave for 3 employees.
➢ Posted Mechanic/Maintenance Tech position job posting.  Mary Parker and Stephanie Rodreguez

provided Spanish job posting, job description and application.
➢ Prepared the agenda and minutes for the Safety Committee meeting on Wednesday, April 21,

2021.
➢ Prepared evaluation templates for Managers and Supervisors for Evaluations Due in April.

Processed pay increases as required.
➢ Sent notices to drivers regarding upcoming renewals of CDL’s and Medical Certifications for April.
➢ Processed the monthly Union Report with a list of all employees eligible for Union membership.

NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATIONS:  

• Provided a New Employee Orientation on 4/19/2021 for Jamey Branum.  Jamey comes to SETD
with 4-years experience driving bus for TriMet.  Jamey is a great addition to the SETD Team!

• Provided a new Employee Orientation on 4/23/2021 for Tyler Johnson.  During COVID Tyler
attended Tillamook Community College and earned his CDL A.  Currently, he is in training and
will be taking his CDL B test soon.  With his friendly personality we look forward to having Tyler
on the road!

• Provided a New Employee Orientation on 5/10/2021 for Victoria Davis.  Victoria comes to SETD
from Astoria and Beaverton School Districts with 5 years bus driving and dispatch experience.
We are delighted to have Victoria on the SETD Team!

HIGHLIGHTS: 

❖ Every day is a highlight when you work with the amazing staff at SETD!  The
dedication and resilience of our employees throughout this challenging pandemic
year deserves to be applauded!!!

WORKPLACE DEMOGRAPHICS: 

Male 30 

Female 16 

Hispanic/Latino 1 

White 43 

Two or More Races 2 

Updated:  5-20-202157


	1. MAY 2021 Board Agenda
	2. Acronym Listing
	5.a March 2021 Draft Board Minutes mpjh
	5.b. April 2021 Draft Board Minutes
	6.a SETD Exceptions Report Apr 2021
	6.b Statement of Activity
	6.c Balance Sheet
	6.d AR Aging
	6.e AP Aging
	6.f Check Listing
	6.g Credit Card Reconciliation
	8.a.1 Time Cover
	8.a.2 Time
	8.a.3 Day
	9.a.1 IGA Cover
	9.a.2 Cannon Beach IGA FY 2021-2023
	9.b.1 Translation Cover
	9.b.2 Translation Comparisons
	9.c.1 Schedules Cover
	9.c.2 ROUTE 10 Astoria Weekday Draft 5-18-21
	9.c.3 ROUTE 13 ASTORIA WEEKEND - Draft 5-7-21
	9.c.4 ROUTE 15 WARRENTON WEEKDAY - Draft 5-7-21
	9.c.5 ROUTE 16 WEEKEND - Draft 5-7-21
	9.c.6 ROUTE 20 Weekday - Draft 5-7-21
	9.c.7 ROUTE 101 Weekday Draft 5-18-21
	11. Executive Director Report 5-27-21
	12.a May 2021 Operations
	12.b RIDE ASSIST MAY 2021 REPORT
	12.c Mobility MAY 2021 board report
	12.d TO May 2021 Board report
	12.e May 2021 Marketing and Outreach - Copy (2)
	12.f HR May 2021 Board Report



